
 

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting 
officer or from Democratic Services, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified. 

 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

Day: Friday 
Date: 17 June 2022 
Time: 10.30 am 
Place: Room 1.6, Tameside One, Market Square, Ashton-Under-

Lyne, OL6 6BH 
 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page 
No 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declarations of interest.  

3.   MINUTES  1 - 6 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the proceedings of the meetings 
of the Speakers’ Panel (Liquor Licensing) held on 6 December 2021. 

 

4.   APPLICATION TO TRANSFER A PREMISES LICENCE AND VARIATION 
OF A PREMISES LICENCE TO SPECIFY AN INDIVIDUAL AS THE 
DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR – MOLLY MALONES, 4 - 6 
GEORGE STREET, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, TAMESIDE, OL6 6AQ  

7 - 88 

 To consider the attached report of the Assistant Director of Operations and 
Neighbourhoods. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

6 December 2021 
 

Commenced: 10.25am Terminated: 2.38pm  

Present: Councillors Lewis (Chair), Bowden and Bowerman 

In Attendance: Mike Robinson 
Rebecca Birch 
Rifat Iqbal 
Ashleigh Melia 
Tracy Jones-Lacy 
PC Thorley 
Shabana Kousar 
Anthony Horne 
Murtza Hussain 
Resident 

Regulatory Services Manager, TMBC 
Regulatory Compliance Officer, TMBC 
Senior Solicitor, TMBC 
Solicitor, TMBC  
Trading Standards Officer 
Greater Manchester Police 
Applicant 
Applicant’s legal representative 
Applicant’s husband 
Having submitted representation 

 
 
13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
14. MINUTES 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Speakers’ Panel (Liquor Licensing) held on 22 November 
2021 be approved as a correct record. 
 
 
15. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – ACRE STREET MINI MARKET, 21 ACRE 

STREET, DENTON.  M34 2BB 
 
Mr Robinson presented the report to the Panel and identified the steps available to the Panel in 
determining the application.  
 
Mr Robinson informed the Panel of the background to the application as set out in the report.  Acre 
Street Mini Market is a former licensed premises and the previous premises licence held by Murtza 
Hussain was revoked at a Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing) hearing on 27 September 2017 
following a prolonged period of non-compliance between May 2015 to June 2017. 
 
During this time the premises was found to be in breach of the licence conditions on numerous 
occasions.  On 15 June 2017, following a joint enforcement visit with the Licensing Authority and 
Greater Manchester Police, a large quantity of illicit tobacco and 600 nitrous oxide gas canisters 
were seized from the premises.   
 
The Licensing Department was informed by Mr Hussain that he intended to appeal the decision at 
the Speakers Panel Hearing at the Magistrates Court however enquiries with the Court revealed 
that no appeal had been submitted. 
 
Following the revocation, Mr Hussain should have immediately ceased the sale of alcohol however 
on 23 February 2019 the premises was still found to be selling alcohol.  On 9 March 2018 a test 
purchase was conducted by an officer who was served a bottle of wine and obtained a receipt of 
purchase and on 13 March 2018, alcohol was still being offered for sale.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

On 16 May 2018 the Licensing Department received an application for a new premises licence 
from the Applicant in respect of the same premises.  On 4 June 2018, a visit was conducted to the 
premises where a large fridge on the shop floor was found full of a range of alcoholic products.  
The stock room also contained a large amount of alcohol.  On 17 July 2018 this premises licence 
application was refused at a Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing) hearing. 
 
Tameside Council’s Trading Standards Department continued to receive complaints that the 
premises was still selling single cigarettes, illicit tobacco and concerns regarding underage sales. 
In March 2019 and March 2020 illicit tobacco was seized from the premises.  In June 2021, illicit 
tobacco was obtained from a backroom within the premises and was sold to a test purchaser as 
part of an operation arranged by Trading Standards. 
 
On 4 October 2021, the Licensing Office received an application from the Applicant for a premises 
licence at Acre Street Mini Market, 21 Acre Street, Denton, M34 2BB.  The application is seeking 
the authorisation of the provision of sale of alcohol.  A copy of the application was attached as 
Appendix 4 of the report.   
 
In response to the application, the Licensing Authority received representations from PC Martin 
Thorley on behalf of Greater Manchester Police, Tracy Jones-Lacy, Trading Standards Officer on 
behalf of Tameside Council Trading Standards and also received a representation statement from 
Rebecca Birch, Regulatory Compliance Officer on behalf of the Licensing Authority.  The 
representations relate to concerns regarding the sale of illicit tobacco and alcohol and underage 
sales. 
 
In addition to these, the Licensing Authority also received representations from four members of 
the public.  
 
Mr Robinson referred the Panel to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the Statutory 
Guidance (relevant extracts from which were contained within the report). 
 
Mr Anthony Horne made submissions on behalf of the Applicant in support of the Application 
(Appendix 4 of the report).  
 
Mr Horne referred to the photograph of Acre Street Mini Market attached to the report (Appendix 1) 
and informed the Panel that he visited the premises on Friday 3 December and confirmed that the 
‘off licence’ signs had been removed and covered over.  
 
Mr Horne referred to the review of the licence held by Mr Hussain in 2017 and stated that ‘things 
were badly wrong at the shop’ and that the clients did themselves no favours by instructing a 
solicitor who specialised in criminal rather than licensing law. 
 
Mr Horne stated that Mr Hussain did lodge an appeal to the Magistrates Court following the 
revocation in 2017 however he lodged the appeal at Stockport Magistrates Court instead of 
Tameside Magistrates Court and that this is why the Licensing Authority received no notice of an 
appeal.  
 
Mr Horne referred to the incidents contained within PC Thorley’s representation, stating that 
intelligence reports can be reliable or completely unreliable or malicious and stated that the 
intelligence reports should not be taken at face value. 
 
Mr Horne referred to the chronology of incidents and reports, stating that these things should not 
be happening but that things had improved significantly.  In relation to the incidents, Mr Horne 
submitted: 

 June 2021 – the incident started as a fight outside the shop and burst into the shop and the 
police who attended at the time were aware of this. 

 July 2018 - Mr Hussain’s conviction in July 2018 is spent and he received a £200 fine. 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

 March 2018 - when a large fridge full of alcohol was found on the shop floor, the fridge was 
covered, not accessible to the public and was not offered for sale. 

 January 2020 –complaint regarding the underage sale of tobacco, but no further 
information was received. 

 October 2020 – intelligence was received however no outcome given. 

 September 2020 – no tobacco was found on the premises. 

 November 2020 – there was a complaint of underage sales but no further information 
provided. 

 May 2021 and crimestoppers report – no further information was received. 

 June 2021 – No tobacco or alcohol found during visit to the premises. 

 June 2021 – positive test purchase made by Red Snapper and illicit tobacco sold – the 
Applicant does not remember this but accepts this at face value as there is a receipt from 
Red Snapper. 

 In October 2021 large quantity of alcohol found in the upstairs of the building (being the 
Applicant’s residence) was kept there for personal use and the price stickers were those of 
the manufacturer and not the Applicant. 

 The whatsapp messages from an alcohol vendor were reported to the police by the 
Applicant’s husband. 

 
Mr Horne submitted that there had been noticeable improvement in the past 18 months.   
 
Mr Robinson on behalf of the Licensing Authority asked who worked at and had worked at the 
premises since Mr Hussain’s licence was revoked.  The Applicant confirmed that only her and her 
husband worked at the premises and had worked at the premises since Mr Hussain’s licence was 
revoked.  
 
Mr Robinson referred to the Applicant’s previous application for a premises licence, asking whether 
there was any dishonesty or attempted to mislead the panel as the Applicant stated that she had 
separated from her husband.  The Applicant confirmed that they had an argument and had split up 
but as they had a daughter together, they were now back together. 
 
Mr Robinson asked the Applicant about the positive test purchase of illicit tobacco in June 2021 
carried out by Red Snapper with the seller described as an Asian female in her 30’s.  The 
Applicant stated that she was not aware of the purchase, that the purchase never took place and 
that it was not her.  
 
Mr Robinson asked the Applicant to confirm at what point things started to improve and when 
legislation has been complied with since Mr Hussain’s licence was revoked as there had been two 
seizures and sale of illicit tobacco since then.  The Applicant stated that things had improved in the 
shop and that people feel safe with them.  Mr Robinson referred to the nitrous oxide found in the 
premises both in June 2017 and March 2019 and the Applicant stated that she was not aware of 
nitrous oxide being found on the premises in 2019. 
 
Mr Robinson asked how the Applicant could comply given that the premises were still selling 
alcohol 6 months after the revocation.  The Applicant stated that they want to work with Trading 
Standards and the Licensing Authority to improve things.  Mr Robinson stated that they, the 
authorities, had worked tirelessly with the Applicant and Mr Hussain previously.  
 
PC Thorley referred to Mr Horne’s submission that there were no safeguarding issues regarding 
children and asked whether Mr Horne would agree that selling nitrous oxide would give rise to 
issues at the premises.  
 
PC Thorley expressed his concern that the Applicant had no recollection of the sale to Red 
Snapper despite the Applicant confirming that she was the only female member of staff.  PC 
Thorley asked the Applicant if she had ever sold illicit tobacco to which she replied that she had 
not.  

Page 3



 
 

 
 

Ms Jones-Lacey on behalf of Trading Standards asked the Applicant to explain how the sale of 
illicit tobacco to Red Snapper did not happen as Red Snapper were ex police officers instructed by 
Trading Standards.  The Applicant responded that she did not understand as she definitely did not 
sell the illicit tobacco.  
 
The Panel asked the Applicant if anyone else has ever worked in the shop and the Applicant 
confirmed that only her and her husband have worked in the shop and that her brother in law helps 
with cash and carry sometimes.  
 
The representations from all local residents appear at Appendices 8 to 11 of the report.  Resident 2 
attended the hearing and reiterated its representation to the Panel.   
 
Ms Birch, Regulatory Compliance Officer presented a representation on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority.  The representation was included at Appendix 6 to the Report.  The basis of the 
representation was that due to the history of non-compliance, there were concerns that the 
premises would seriously undermine the Licensing Objectives, specifically public safety, the 
protection of children from harm and the prevention of crime and disorder.  
 
Mr Horne asked Ms Birch if she agreed that there has been a noticeable improvement and Ms 
Birch stated that she did not agree.  Mr Horne asked Ms Birch how reliable the intelligence 
received regarding the sales of illicit tobacco and underage sales was.  Mr Robinson interrupted 
and requested this question be asked of the Police and Trading Standards who had received the 
intelligence. 
 
PC Thorley presented a representation on behalf of Greater Manchester Police.  The 
representation was included at Appendix 5 to the report.  
 
The Police concerns were primarily focused on anti-social behaviour in the area.  PC Thorley 
stated the area of Denton suffered from issues of street drinking and anti-social behaviour.  The 
Police were of the view that another licensed premises would lead to more alcohol related anti-
social behaviour.  
 
PC Thorley explained the Police’s source evaluation of the intelligence received and made the 
following submissions regarding the validity of the intelligence received: 

 February 2020 – premises selling e-cigarettes to year 7 students received a rating of C as it 
was known indirectly to the source and received untested source evaluation. 

 May 2021 – underage sale of vapes, alcohol, tobacco and cannabis to school children by a 
bald, slim, Asian male driving a BMW received a D rating as it came from Crimestoppers 
and was rated as a 2 (untested source). 

 June 2021 – male assaulted in shop receiving a laceration to his nose was reported by the 
Applicant. 
 

Mr Horne asked PC Thorley why he did not disclose the intelligence reports referred to in his 
witness statement. 
 
PC Thorley stated that there was no further information and that he would not disclose the details 
of the source providing the information. 
 
Ms Jones-Lacy, Trading Stands Officer, presented a representation on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority.  The representation was included at Appendix 7 to the report.  The basis of the 
representation was the history of non-compliance from the premises and the operation of the 
premises in recent years which had consistently undermined the licensing objectives. 
There was a comfort break after which attendees asked questions of Ms Jones-Lacy.  
 
Resident 2 left the meeting at this juncture. 
 
 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

In response to questions, Ms Jones-Lacy confirmed that: 

 She had been a Trading Standards Officer for 20 years and in her experience, illicit tobacco 
had evolved to more elaborate concealments. 

 Trading Standards worked on the basis of information received then they determine 
whether or not this information could be classified as ‘intelligence’. 

 No alcohol was found during the visit in June 2021. 

 In response to intelligence received in May 2021 that alcohol was being sold in the 
premises, Trading Standards searched the premises and found alcohol upstairs with price 
labels on them. 

 The way the premises had operated over the years had not improved sufficiently. 

 It was not possible to fully search the premises on each occasion without a dog as it would 
take 2 days to search. 

 Trading Standards had continued to find the same brand of illicit tobacco at the premises 
(Richmond) 

 
All parties were provided with the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the representations 
made. 
 
All parties were invited to provide a brief statement in summary. 
 
Members of the Panel then retired to carefully consider the written submissions, representations 
and questions and answers during the hearing in addition to all the information provided.  The 
Panel were accompanied by the Legal Representative and the Principal Democratic Services 
Officer who provided legal and procedural advice only and took no part in the decision making 
process. 
 
In determining the matter, the Panel had due regard to: 

 all oral and written evidence and submissions 

 the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy including the Cumulative Impact Policy,  

 the relevant sections of the Licensing Act 2003 and Regulations made thereunder  

 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of that Act. 
 
The Panel determined the application pursuant to s.18(3) of the Act having regard to the relevant 
representations and the requirement to take such steps as it considered appropriate to promote the 
licensing objectives.  
 
The key points identified by the Panel were as follows: 

 Following a seizure of illicit tobacco and 600 nitrous oxide gas canisters on 15 June 2017, 
the licence previously held by Mr Hussain was revoked on 27 September 2017. 

 On 16 May 2018 an application was received for a new premises licence from Ms Shabana 
Kousar  

 On 4 June 2018 the premises was visited and a fridge full of alcoholic drinks was found in 
the premises. 

 On 17 July 2018 the Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing) hearing refused Ms Kousar’s 
premises licence application. 

 The Council’s Trading Standards department had continued to receive reports of single 
cigarettes, illicit tobacco being sold at the premises: 

o In March 2019, Trading Standards, with tobacco detection dogs, conducted a visit at 
the premises where a small amount of illicit tobacco was seized together with 
nitrous oxide. 

o In January 2020 a complaint regarding the sale of tobacco to underage children was 
received. 

o In March 2020 Trading Standards visited the premises and found 2 packets of illicit 
tobacco and 2 packets of illicit hand rolling tobacco. 

o In September 2020 a joint enforcement visit was undertaken and no tobacco was 
found. 

Page 5



 
 

 
 

o In October 2020, a report was received relating to illicit tobacco being sold from the 
premises. 

o In November 2020, reports of underage sales of vapes and e-cigarettes were 
received. 

o In May 2021 report was received of vapes, tobacco, alcohol, cannabis and THC 
being sold to school children with the shop owner being described as a bald asian 
man of slim build and drives a black BMW. 

o In June 2021, a general compliance visited conducted by Trading Standards and 
the Council’s Licensing Department was carried out where no illicit tobacco was 
found and no alcohol was being sold on the premises. 

o In the same month, a positive test purchase of illicit tobacco was made by Red 
Snapper with the seller identified as an asian female approximately 5’4”. 

o In October 2021, Trading Standards carried out an inspection of the upstairs of the 
premises and found a large quantity of alcohol with price stickers on them. 

 Ms Kousar confirmed that she was the only female working at the premises however she 
denied that she had made a sale of illicit tobacco in June 2021. 

 When questioned about the alcohol found in the building upstairs in October 2021, this was 
confirmed to be for personal consumption. 

 
It was not for the Panel to make findings in relation to guilt or innocence of any criminal activities 
that may have taken place although there was concern in relation to the number of reports that had 
continued to be made since May 2018 in relation to illicit tobacco and alcohol on the premises, 
together with reports of nitrous oxide being sold at the premises.  Furthermore, the Panel was 
concerned that Ms Kousar denied being involved in the sale of illicit tobacco in June 2021 having 
told the Panel that she was the only female who works in the shop.  The panel were also 
concerned that Ms Kousar did not accept that nitrous oxide was found in the premises in 2019.  
 
The Panel in their deliberations had regard to the fact that a high school was located close to the 
premises and the concern for the underage sales taking place to children.  
 
The Panel also noted that Ms Kousar stated that the premises was run and continued to be run by 
herself and her husband Mr Hussain.  At a previous panel hearing relating to Ms Kousar’s 
application for a premises licence in 2018, she confirmed that Mr Hussain would have no 
involvement in the business going forward however reports had continued to be received of illicit 
tobacco being sold at the premises and that a bald asian male was described as being involved.  
 
The Panel considered all available options.  
 
The Panel were not satisfied that Ms Kousar made any submissions at the hearing that she could 
promote the licensing objectives should the licence be granted. 
 
On balance, having carefully considered all of the available information, the Panel concluded that it 
had no confidence that the Licensing Objectives would be upheld and determined to refuse the 
premises licence.  
 
The Panel thanked those attending the hearing for their contribution and assisting the Panel in 
reaching its decision. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the premises licence be refused. 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 6



 

 

Report to:  SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 

Date: 17 June 2022 

Reporting Officer: Emma Varnam – Assistant Executive Director, Operations & 
Neighbourhoods  

Subject: APPLICATION TO TRANSFER A PREMISES LICENCE AND 
VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE TO SPECIFY AN 
INDIVIDUAL AS THE DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR – 
MOLLY MALONES, 4 - 6 GEORGE STREET, ASHTON-UNDER-
LYNE, TAMESIDE, OL6 6AQ 

Report Summary: Members are requested to determine the applications 

Recommendations: Application to transfer a Premises Licence  

Having regard to the application and the relevant representations, 
Members are invited to take such steps as it considers appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps available 
are: 

(a) Grant the application for the transfer of the premises licence. Or,  

(b) Reject the application for the transfer of the premises licence if 

it considers it appropriate to do so for the promotion of the crime 

prevention objective. 

Variation of a Premises Licence to specify an individual as the 

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 

Having regard to the application and the relevant representations, 
Members are invited to take such steps as it considers appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps available 
are: 

(a) Grant the application for the variation of a premises licence to 

specify an individual as the DPS. Or,  

(b) Reject the application for the variation of the premises licence to 
specify an individual as the DPS if it considers it appropriate to do 
so for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

Corporate Plan: Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community 

Policy Implications: Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the decision 
making process. 

Financial Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
statutory Section 151 
Officer & Chief Finance 
Officer) 

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed 
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision may 
potentially incur costs. 

Legal Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
Borough Solicitor) 

If the Panel rejects either/or both of the applications that decision 
can be challenged by the Applicant by way of appeal.   
 
Any person who made relevant representations can appeal against 
the decision to grant the licences. Any challenge would be by way 
of an appeal to the Magistrate’s Court which may dismiss the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 

appeal, substitute for the decision appealed against any other 
decision which could have been made by the licensing authority, or 
remit the case to the licensing authority to dispose of it in 
accordance with the direction of the court and may make such order 
as to costs as it thinks fit.  
 
If an appeal were successful the Magistrates would be unlikely to 
order costs against the Local Authority if the authority had acted 
honestly, reasonably, properly and on grounds that reasonably 
appeared to be sound, in exercise of its public duty. 

 

Risk Management: Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing 
issues has the potential to impact on public safety. 

Access to Information: The author of the report is Mike Robinson, Regulatory Services 
Manager (Licensing) 

Background Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting  

Telephone: 0161 342 4122 

e-mail: mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

mailto:mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk


 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 An application for the transfer of an existing premises licence under Section 42 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 is normally a straightforward licensing procedure and is dealt with as an 
administrative matter. As part of the application process, the applicant is required to give 
notice of the application to the police.  
 

1.2 Under Section 42 (6) of the Licensing Act 2003 where a chief officer of police is satisfied that 
the exceptional circumstances of the case are such that granting the application would 
undermine the crime prevention objective, he must serve notice to the Licensing Authority 
within fourteen days of receiving the application.  
 

1.3 When a valid objection under Section 42 (6) is received from the police and the objection has 
not been withdrawn, the matter must be referred to the Panel for a hearing to determine the 
application. 
 

1.4 With respect to an application to vary a licence to specify an individual as the Designated 

Premises Supervisor, Section 37 of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby 

the holder of a premises licence may apply to vary the licence so as to specify the individual 

named in the application as the premises supervisor. 

 

1.5 Under Section 37 (5), where a Chief Officer of Police is satisfied that the exceptional 

circumstances of the case are such that granting the application would undermine the crime 

prevention objective, he must serve notice to the Licensing Authority within fourteen days of 

receiving the application. 

 

1.6 When a valid objection under Section 37 (5) is received from the Police and the objection has 

not been withdrawn, the matter must be referred to the Panel for a hearing to determine the 

application. 

 
1.7 It is the view of the Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing) that it would be appropriate to 

hear these applications simultaneously as they both relate to Mr Beevor for the same venue. 
The supporting information submitted on behalf of the Chief Constable of Police is the same 
in respect of both applications. This is a matter for the Panel to consider and resolve prior to 
hearing the applications. 
 

 
2. REPORT 
 
2.1 The Premises Licence for Molly Malones, 4-6 George Street, Ashton-under-Lyne was 

surrendered by the previous licence holder on 25 April 2022. Section 50 of the Licensing Act 
2003 allows for a surrendered licence to be reinstated where a valid transfer application is 
made no later than 28 days after the licence lapsed 
 

2.2 A site plan, including an up to date photograph of the premises is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

2.3 Applications for the transfer of the licence and variation of licence to specify an individual as 
a Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) were made simultaneously for the premises on 3 
May 2022. The applications were to transfer the Licence to Mr James Beevor and specify 
him as the DPS, with immediate effect in both cases. A copy of these applications are 
attached at Appendix 2. 
 

2.4 In this case the request to transfer was to have immediate effect and was administered by 
the Licensing Authority accordingly. By virtue of Section 43 of the Act the premises licence 
has effect during the “application period” as if the applicant were the holder of the licence. 

Page 9



 

 

The application period began when the application was received by the Licensing Authority 
and ends when the application is granted, or if it is rejected, at the time the rejection is notified 
to the applicant. Therefore, if a decision is made to appeal the Panel’s decision at the 
Magistrates Court the “application period” will continue until the determination by that court. 
 

2.5 On 14 May 2018 the Licensing Authority received a notice from Greater Manchester Police 
in objection to this application, including a detailed account of their reasons stating the 
grounds for being satisfied that the exceptional circumstances of the case were such that 
granting the transfer of licence to Mr Beevor would undermine the crime prevention objective. 
At the same time a notice was also submitted stating the grounds for being satisfied that the 
exceptional circumstances of the case were such that granting the application to specify Mr 
Beevor as DPS would undermine the crime prevention objective. A copy of the notices and 
supporting information provided with those notices is provided at Appendix 3. 
 

2.6 On 25 May 2022, the applicant was notified of the representation received from Greater 
Manchester Police and invited to attend the hearing. In response to this notification the 
Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing) received communication via post from Mr Beevor 
on 31 May 2022 and by email on 8 June 2022, providing Mr Beevor’s version of events. 
These letters are attached at Appendix 4. 

 
 
3. HOME OFFICE GUIDANCE 
 
3.1 In determining this application the Panel must have regard to the Council’s Statement of 

Licensing Policy and the statutory guidance issued pursuant to s182 of the Licensing Act 

2003. The statutory guidance includes the following: 

 

Specification of new designated premises supervisors 
 
4.31 Every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must specify a DPS. This 

will normally be the person who has been given day to day responsibility for running the 

premises by the premises licence holder. The only exception is for community premises 

which have successfully made an application to remove the usual mandatory conditions set 

out in the 2003 Act. Guidance on such applications is set out in paragraphs 4.52 to 4.65 of 

this Guidance.  

 

4.32 The Government considers it essential that police officers, fire officers or officers of the 

licensing authority can identify immediately the DPS so that any problems can be dealt with 

swiftly. For this reason, the name of the DPS and contact details must be specified on the 

premises licence and this must be held at the premises and displayed in summary form. The 

DPS’ personal address should not be included in the summary form in order to protect their 

privacy.  

 

4.33 To specify a DPS, the premises licence holder should normally submit an application to 

the licensing authority (which may include an application for immediate interim effect) with:  

• a form of consent signed by the individual concerned to show that they consent to taking on 

this responsible role, and  

• the relevant part (Part A) of the licence. 

 
Police objections to new designated premises supervisors  

 

4.39 The police may object to the designation of a new DPS where, in exceptional 

circumstances, they believe that the appointment would undermine the crime prevention 

Page 10



 

 

objective. The police can object where, for example, a DPS is first specified in relation to 

particular premises and the specification of that DPS in relation to the particular premises 

gives rise to exceptional concerns. For example, where a personal licence holder has been 

allowed by the courts to retain their licence despite convictions for selling alcohol to children 

(a relevant offence) and then transfers into premises known for underage drinking.  

 

4.40 Where the police do object, the licensing authority must arrange for a hearing at which 

the issue can be considered and both parties can put forward their arguments. The 2003 Act 

provides that the applicant may apply for the individual to take up post as DPS immediately 

and, in such cases, the issue would be whether the individual should be removed from this 

post. The licensing authority considering the matter must restrict its consideration to the issue 

of crime and disorder and give comprehensive reasons for its decision. Either party would be 

entitled to appeal if their argument is rejected.  

 

4.41 The portability of personal licences between premises is an important concept under the 

2003 Act. It is expected that police objections would arise in only genuinely exceptional 

circumstances. If a licensing authority believes that the police are routinely objecting to the 

designation of new premises supervisors on grounds which are not exceptional, they should 

raise the matter with the chief officer of police as a matter of urgency. 

 

Designated premises supervisor 

 

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, 

it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no 

designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence has 

been suspended.  

 

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act 

is to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence 

holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in force. 

That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running the premises 

by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the designated 

premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence holder do not 

apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application has been made to 

disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) of the 2003 Act (see 

Chapter 4 of this Guidance).  

 

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal 

licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However, the 

designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible for the 

premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and conditions 

attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives. 

 

Transfers of premises licences 

 

8.99 The 2003 Act provides for any person who may apply for a premises licence, which 

includes a business, to apply for a premises licence to be transferred to them. Where the 

application is made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the application to the chief 

officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) if the licence 

Page 11



 

 

authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment. Where it is made 

electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility, the licensing authority 

must notify the police and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) no later than the first 

working day after the application is given. However, the responsibility to notify the DPS 

remains with the applicant. Otherwise the general guidance on electronic applications set out 

in paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. 

 

8.100 In the vast majority of cases, it is expected that a transfer will be a very simple 

administrative process. Section 43 of the 2003 Act provides a mechanism which allows the 

transfer to come into immediate interim effect as soon as the licensing authority receives it, 

until it is formally determined or withdrawn. This is to ensure that there should be no 

interruption to normal business at the premises. If the police or the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) raise no objection about the application, the licensing authority must transfer 

the licence in accordance with the application, amend the licence accordingly and return it to 

the new holder.  

 

8.101 In exceptional circumstances where the chief officer of police believes the transfer may 

undermine the crime prevention objective, the police may object to the transfer. The Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) may object if it considers that granting the transfer would 

be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Such objections are 

expected to be rare and arise because the police or the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) have evidence that the business or individuals seeking to hold the licence, or 

businesses or individuals linked to such persons, are involved in crime (or disorder) or 

employing illegal workers.  

 

8.102 Such objections (and therefore such hearings) should only arise in truly exceptional 

circumstances. If the licensing authority believes that the police or the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) are using this mechanism to vet transfer applicants routinely and 

to seek hearings as a fishing expedition to inquire into applicants’ backgrounds, it is expected 

that it would raise the matter immediately with the chief officer of police or the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement). 

 

 
4. CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL 

 
4.1 The Panel is requested to consider the content of this report and appendices and any oral 

evidence/submissions put forward at the to determine these applications and to take such 

steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
4.2 The steps available are set out at the front of the report. 
 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87

mike.robinson
Text Box
APPENDIX 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 APPLICATION TO TRANSFER A PREMISES LICENCE AND VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE TO SPECIFY AN INDIVIDUAL AS THE DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR – MOLLY MALONES, 4 - 6 GEORGE STREET, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, TAMESIDE, OL6 6AQ
	ITEM 4 -Appendix1
	ITEM 4 -Appendix2
	ITEM 4 -Appendix3
	ITEM 4 -Appendix4
	Appendix 5 - JB(1)
	Appendix 6 - GMP Licensing Delegated authority - Licensing Act 2003 (002)


